Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD

730 om Wednesday Council Chamber -
=UP 15 November 2023 Town Hall
Members 12: Quorum 5
COUNCILLORS:
Conservative Group Havering Residents’ Group
(4) (5)
Dilip Patel Laurance Garrard
Keith Prince Gerry O'Sullivan (Chairman)
Timothy Ryan Philip Ruck (Vice-Chair)
David Taylor Natasha Summers
Bryan Vincent
Labour Group East Havering Residents
2) 1)
Mandy Anderson Martin Goode

Katharine Tumilty

For information about the meeting please contact:
Luke Phimister 01708 434619
luke.phimister@oneSource.co.uk



Overview & Scrutiny Board, 15 November 2023

Under the Committee Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution
the Chairman of the meeting may exercise the powers conferred upon the
Mayor in relation to the conduct of full Council meetings. As such, should
any member of the public interrupt proceedings, the Chairman will warn
the person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will
order their removal from the meeting room and may adjourn the meeting
while this takes place.

Excessive noise and talking should also be kept to a minimum whilst the
meeting is in progress in order that the scheduled business may proceed
as planned.

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, except in
circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

¢ filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at a meeting as it
takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so that the report or
commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary or report. This is
to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 that they wish to
report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable employees to guide anyone choosing to
report on proceedings to an appropriate place from which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and walking around
could distract from the business in hand.



Overview & Scrutiny Board, 15 November 2023

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD

Under the Localism Act 2011 (s. 9F) each local authority is required by law to establish an overview and scrutiny
function to support and scrutinise the Council’s executive arrangements.

The Overview and Scrutiny Board acts as a vehicle by which the effectiveness of scrutiny is monitored and where
work undertaken by themed sub-committees can be coordinated to avoid duplication and to ensure that areas of
priority are being reviewed. The Board also scrutinises general management matters relating to the Council and
further details are given in the terms of reference below. The Overview and Scrutiny Board has oversight of
performance information submitted to the Council’'s executive and also leads on scrutiny of the Council budget
and associated information. All requisitions or ‘call-ins’ of executive decisions are dealt with by the Board.

The Board is politically balanced and includes among its membership the Chairmen of the six themed Overview
and Scrutiny Sub-Committees.

Terms of Reference:
The areas scrutinised by the Board are:

e Strategy and commissioning

e Partnerships with Business

e Customer access

e E-government and ICT

e Finance (although each committee is responsible for budget
processes that affect its area of oversight)
Human resources

Asset Management

Property resources

Facilities Management

Communications

Democratic Services

Social inclusion

Councillor Call for Action




Overview & Scrutiny Board, 15 November 2023

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

A4

D
P Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):
| = any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;
+ any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;
+ any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering
= any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;
« any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.
N
o YES Declare Interest and Leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
E the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
R * Your well-being or financial position; or
S * The well-being or financial position of:
o
N o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
A - Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
L - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
1
N o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
T which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
E o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
R principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
E member or in a position of general control or management?
S
T S
I N
You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests
P
E
c N/
u Would a member of the public, with . )
N knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
I reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
A likely to prejudice your member of the meeting)
R Y
Y E
S
] - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
N through whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
T you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
E - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
R Y
E E
S s
T
Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Overview & Scrutiny Board, 15 November 2023

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive.
3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

4 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider whether the public should now be excluded from the relevant parts of the
meeting on the grounds that it is likely that, in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, if members of the public were present
during those items there would be disclosure to them of exempt information within the
meaning of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972; and, if it
is decided to exclude the public on those grounds, the Committee to resolve
accordingly on the motion of the Chairman.

5 CALL-IN OF AN EXECUTIVE DECISION - PROPOSED LOANS TO MERCURY
LAND HOLDINGS LIMITED (COMPANY NO: 09878652), FOR DEVELOPMENT AT
FORMER ST BERNARD'S DAY CENTRE, PEEL WAY. (Pages 7 - 152)

Report, grounds of call-in and Executive Decision attached.

Zena Smith
Head of Committee and Election Services



This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda ltem 5
&¢ Havering

g L ONDON BOROUGH

Overview & REPORT
Scrutiny Board

15 November 2023

Subject Heading: Call-in of an Executive Decision -
Proposed Loans to Mercury Land
Holdings Limited (Company No:
09878652), for development at Former St
Bernard’s Day Centre, Peel Way.

SLT Lead: Gavin Milnthorpe — Deputy Director of
Legal Services
Report Author and contact details: Anthony Clements Principal Democratic

Services Officer
anthony.clements@onesource.co.uk

Policy context: The report deals with a statutory process.

Financial summary: There is no significant financial impact

from the statutory processes as these
requirements are being met by existing
budgets.

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

People - Things that matter for residents
Place - A great place to live, work and enjoy

Resources - A well run Council that delivers for People and Place X

Page 7



SUMMARY

In accordance with paragraph 17 of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee Rules, a
requisition signed by six Members representing more than one Group (Councillors
Joshua Chapman, Jason Frost, Judith Holt, Jane Keane, Keith Prince and David
Taylor) have called-in the Key Executive Decision dated 26 October 2023.

The grounds for the requisition are attached as is a response by officers and the
Executive Decision itself.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board considers the requisition of the Key Executive Decision and
determines whether to uphold it.

REPORT DETAIL

As per Appendices
e Grounds for requisition
e Response by officers

o Key Executive Decision report (Appendices A-C and E-F not available to
press or public)

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks: None of this covering report.

Legal implications and risks: None of this covering report.

Human Resources implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Equalities implications and risks: None of this covering report.

Environmental and Climate Change implications and risks: None of this
covering report.

Page 8



BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Board, 15 November 2023

Subject:- Proposed Loans to Mercury Land Holdings Limited (Company No:
09878652), for development at Former St Bernard’s Day Centre, Peel Way.

Reasons for call in:

We would like more information on the financial viability of the scheme, MLH's ability
to complete and sell the units, and more information on the financial impact to
Havering Council for issuing the loan, including any new borrowing.

Additionally, the decision refers to the possibility of the price of purchase increasing if

amends are made during the planning procedure, we would like further information
on whether the proposed loan would meet any increase in cost.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



»¢ Havering

g L ONDON BOROUGH

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD

This Report is part exempt and Appendix A is not available for public inspection as it
contains or relates to exempt information within the meaning of paragraph 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is exempt because it refers to
information relating to the financial or business affairs of another party, and the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

Subject Heading: Proposed Loans to Mercury Land
Holdings Limited (Company No:
09878652), for development at Former St
Bernard’s Day Centre, Peel Way.

ELT Lead: Neil Stubbings

Report Author and contact details: Mark Butler
mark.butler@havering.gov.uk

Policy context: The establishment of Mercury Land
Holdings was agreed in May 2015. Its key
objectives were to generate a financial
return to the Council, contribute to the
delivery of housing supply, ensure the
right mix of housing for the borough and
support the growth and regeneration
needs of the Council.

SUMMARY

The report seeks to address the points raised within the call-in of the Key
Executive Decision relating to Proposed Loans to Mercury Land Holdings,
published on 19th October 2023.

The call-in requisition states as follows:

We would like more information on the financial viability of the scheme, MLH's
ability to complete and sell the units, and more information on the financial impact
to Havering Council for issuing the loan, including any new borrowing.

Additionally, the decision refers to the possibility of the price of purchase increasing

if amends are made during the planning procedure, we would like further
information on whether the proposed loan would meet any increase in cost.

Page 13



‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

Members are asked to confirm their observations to the Lead Member for
Development and Regeneration, as the Decision Maker for the Key Executive
Decision

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

1 Background

1.1A Key Executive Decision was published on 19th October 2023, recommending
the advance of loan funding to Mercury Land Holdings Ltd, for the purchase
and subsequent development of the former St Bernards Day Centre, Peel Way,
Harold Wood. The Executive Decision was accompanied by a number of
exempt appendices containing commercially sensitive information.

1.2 On 2" November, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, notification of
a valid call-in relating to the Executive Decision was confirmed. This paper
seeks to provide clarification regarding the specific points raised within the call-
in below. Where information was originally set out within the exempt
appendices, this is again provided within an exempt section of this report, which
is not for publication

2. Matters raised within the call in

2.1 More information on the financial viability of the scheme

Details of the viability assessment are set out within the exempt Appendix to this
paper.

2.2 MLH's ability to complete and sell the units

MLH will tender the construction contract and the viability assessment will be
reviewed again prior to making the tender award to identify any variance with
current construction cost estimates.

An agent will be appointed by MLH to conduct marketing and sales — sales costs
are included within ‘developer costs’ within the viability assessment.

As confirmed at para. 4.19 of exempt Appendix A to the Key Executive Decision,
all 9 properties will be sold by MLH on the open market. Sales values will be

Page 14



finalised at the point of sale. The current forecast is included in the exempt part of
this report, which form part of the Decision.

2.3 More information on the financial impact to Havering Council for issuing
the loan, including any new borrowing.

Details are set out within the exempt Appendix to this paper, which forms part of
the Decision

2.4 Additionally, the decision refers to the possibility of the price of purchase
increasing if amends are made during the planning procedure, we would like
further information on whether the proposed loan would meet any increase
in cost.

Whilst the planning application at Peel Way has yet to be determined, the nature
and scale of development was the subject of pre-app discussion with planning
officers and no substantial amendment is anticipated.

In the event of the planning decision presenting any material change to unit
numbers or design, the scheme viability would be re-appraised prior to agreeing
the loan to MLH

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

A number of risks have been considered in the evaluation of the business case
relating to the proposed funding of the development proposals at Peel Way. These
include looking at the PWLB borrowing rates and on-lending; assessment of
development risk; public subsidy control and transfer pricing. These risks can be
appropriately managed across the scheme.

Exempt Appendix A comprises the MLH Business Case for Peel Way. Exempt
Appendix B provides the Council’'s Commercial Review of the MLH development
proposals.

In summary, this information demonstrates that it would be appropriate for the
Council to provide the loan support requested by MLH provided that it is regulated
by Loan Facility Agreements between the Council and MLH. The funding
requested by MLH, as set out in the exempt appendices, should not therefore be
advanced unless and until such an agreement(s) has been legally completed.

Page 15



The decision will, amongst other things, require the utilisation of Council Officers to
assist in the development of the Loan Facility Agreement(s), the release of funds to
Mercury Land Holding and the associated on-going financial monitoring.

Legal implications and risks:

Finance Arrangements

In relation to entering into the financial arrangements the Council may rely on
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 which provides local authorities with the power
to do anything that an individual may do subject to a number of limitations (this is
referred to as the General Power). Together with Section 111 Local Government
Act 1972, which provides the Council with the power to do anything whether or not
involving the expenditure, borrowing or lending of money or the acquisition of
property rights which is incidental, conducive or calculated to facilitate the exercise
of any of their functions. The Council could rely on these powers to provide the
company with loans.

Public Subsidy Control

It is important that any loans provided to MLH are UK subsidy control compliant
under section 2 Subsidy Control Act 2022. Loans which the Council generally
makes available to MLH for market housing must be made on commercial terms
and at a commercial interest rate or where the Council is acting like any usual
market investor. It may be necessary for the Council to obtain independent
confirmation that such arrangements have been made on commercial terms prior
to them being entered into including taking usual securities over land/assets under
usual market conditions.

Fiduciary Duties

The Council’s fiduciary duties could be briefly summarised as it acting as a trustee
of tax and public sector income on behalf of its rate and tax payers. The Council in
effect holds money but does not own it; it spends money on behalf of its business
rate and Council-tax payers.

In making decisions concerning MLH, the Council considers whether making
investment and/or extending loans to that body (and similar activities) should give
proper consideration to the risks and rewards of approving the recommendations.
In practice Members will want to consider whether the Council will achieve an
appropriate return for its risk and that the Council has minimised the risk and
potential cost to it if the Company were to become insolvent and/or defaulted on its
loan(s).

Consideration should also be given to whether the Council’s involvement in this
arrangement is proportionate and properly balanced against the anticipated benefit
as well as the wider interest of its local business rate and council tax payers. On a
practical basis this means that Members should consider whether the monies that
they are requested to approve for lending could be better used by the Council for
the wider interests of its local tax payers. This should include considering the
impact on the Council (and therefore its local tax payers) if the Company became
insolvent or otherwise defaulted on loans it had taken from the Council.

Page 16



Human Resources implications and risks:

There are no direct implications arising from the proposed provision of funding to
MLH.

Equalities implications and risks:

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

(i) The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(i) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
protected characteristics and those who do not, and;

(iii) Foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics
and those who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation,
marriage and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and
gender reassignment.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the
Council is also committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all
Havering residents in respect of socioeconomics and health determinants.

In relation to the proposed provision of funding to MLH there would appear to be no
risks or implications associated with the Council’s statutory duty.

Beyond the narrow decision itself, the new homes to be to be acquired will all
conform to the appropriate Building Regulations, including those for access, and
with planning requirements.

Environmental and Climate Change implications and risks:

There are no direct implications arising from the proposed provision of funding to
MLH.

The proposed new housing will be built having regard to extant planning policy and
building control standards. Amongst other things, flood prevention and mitigation
measures will be considered, as appropriate, through the planning application
process. The new homes will be warm, well-ventilated and energy efficient.

Page 17



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Key Executive Decision: Proposed Loans to Mercury Land Holdings Limited
(Company No: 09878652), for development at Former St Bernard’s Day Centre,
Peel Way. Issued 19th October 2023

Exempt Appendix A
Exempt Appendix B
Exempt Appendix C
Public Appendix D
Exempt Appendix E
Exempt Appendix F
Exempt Appendix G

Business Case - Financial Implications & Risks
Council Commercial Review

Heads of Terms

Site Location Plan

Draft Design & Access Statement

External Valuation Report

Mercury Land Holdings — Update to Business Plan 2023 presented to Cabinet

— 19" July 2023.

Page 18



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Notice of KEY Executive Decision containing exempt

information.

This Executive Decision contains appendices which comprise exempt
information which is not available for public inspection as they contain or
relate to exempt information within the meaning of paragraph 3 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. They are exempt
because they refer to confidential commercial information and the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in

disclosing the information.

Subject Heading:

Proposed Loans to Mercury
Land Holdings Limited
(Company No: 09878652), for
development at Former St
Bernard’s Day Centre, Peel
Way.

Cabinet Member:

Councillor Graham Williamson
Cabinet Member for Development &
Regeneration.

SLT Lead:

Neil Stubbings
Strategic Director of Place.

Report Author and contact
details:

Mark Butler

Assistant Director — Regeneration &
Place Shaping

01708 432947
Mark.Butler@havering.gov.uk

Martin Fahy

Financial Manager

01708 434651
martin.fahy@havering.gov.uk

Kirsty Moller

Head of Programmes & Support
01708 434707
kirsty.moller@havering.gov.uk

Page 21



mailto:Mark.Butler@havering.gov.uk
mailto:martin.fahy@havering.gov.uk

Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

Policy context:

The establishment of Mercury Land
Holdings was agreed in May 2015. Its
key objectives were to generate a
financial return to the Council,
contribute to the delivery of housing
supply, ensure the right mix of
housing for the borough and support
the growth and regeneration needs of
the Council.

Financial summary:

Costs, funding and associated
risks/issues are set out in the exempt
financial implications and exempt
MLH Business Cases.

Reason decision is Key

The decision involves:

Expenditure or saving (including
anticipated income) of £500,000 or
more.

Date notice given of
intended decision:

ot June 2023.

Relevant OSC:

Places Overview & Scrutiny

being called-in?

Committee.
Is it an urgent decision? No
Is this decision exempt from No

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council

Objectives:
People — Things that matter for residents X
Place — A great place to live, work and enjoy X

Resources — A well run Council that delivers for People and Place  x

Page 22




Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

Part A — Report seeking decision

DETAIL OF THE DECISION REQUESTED AND RECOMMENDED ACTION

This report seeks approval to make a public subsidy control (State Aid) compliant loan
facility and provision of equity to Mercury Land Holdings Limited (the “Company”) to
acquire land at Peel Way, Harold Wood and develop 9 units for private sale.

Subject to appropriate due diligence on the provision of loans and injection of equity, it
is requested that the Council agree to the provision of funding being made available to
the Company for the purposes of site acquisition and development of 9 residential units
at the former St Bernard’s Day Centre, Peel Way, Harold Wood (See Plan at Public
Appendix D).

The proposed acquisition and development of this site is contained in the Business Plan
for the Company (2023-2026) that was approved by Cabinet in July 2023. It is now
brought forward in view of the need to place MLH in funds, preferably before they
complete the site purchase. This latter will be triggered by the grant of planning
permission.

The planning application is under consideration by the Local Planning Authority. Should
any changes to the proposed mix or number of units arise during this process, then they
should be reflected in the purchase price.

Recommendations

For the reasons stated in this report and its exempt appendices, the Cabinet Member
for Development and Regeneration in consultation with the Director of Legal and
Governance and the s151 Officer is recommended to agree the following
recommendations in respect of the subject site:

Peel Way
1. Approve the Business Case for the Company, relating to Peel Way,
provided at Exempt Appendix A.
2. Note that the Company will acquire the land at Peel Way on the terms set

out in the Exempt Appendix C.

3. Approve the proposed development of land at Peel Way by MLH Limited as
shown at Public Appendix E.

4. Approve, subject to recommendations above, the provision of a Public
Subsidy Control (State Aid) compliant loan and equity to the Company at the
amount of £3,344,000 including approval to enter into the sale loan facility
agreements, to develop 9 units for sale whilst allowing the possible option of
the retention of the completed scheme within its PRS portfolio, depending
on the prevailing market conditions at the time.

5. Authorise the Strategic Director of Place, acting in consultation with the
Director of Legal and Governance and the Section 151 Officer, to enter into
all necessary legal agreements to bring into effect the proposed
arrangements in these Recommendations, including any changes, should
they be necessary, that arise through the planning process.

Page 23



Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

AUTHORITY UNDER WHICH DECISION IS MADE

The decisions relating to MLH are usually made by The Leader of The Council under
part 2 of the Council’s Constitution.

This decision can be made by the Cabinet Member for Development & Regeneration
under the delegations approved by Cabinet in July 2023 where it:

1. Approved the Mercury Land Holdings Limited Business Plan 2023 to 2026.

2. Agreed to delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for Development &
Regeneration, in consultation with the S151 Officer, the Strategic Director of
Place and the Deputy Director of Legal and Governance, to approve the detailed
business cases, related viability assessments and funding requirements for the
individual schemes noted within the Business Plan as they may be presented
during the business plan period, including the authority to enter into all relevant
agreements to give effect to the schemes.

STATEMENT OF THE REASONS FOR THE DECISION

To review and approve the business case and funding for Mercury Land Holdings
Limited (MLH) to acquire land at Peel Way for the development of 9 properties.

A Plan showing the land to be acquired and developed is provided at Public Appendix
D.

A document showing the form of the proposed development by MLH is shown at Exempt
Appendix E.

The site does not currently benefit from planning permission. An application has been
submitted to the London Borough of Havering as Planning Authority, by MLH, and is
under consideration.

The acquisition of the land by MLH is conditional on planning permission being granted.

Amongst other things, the proposed development will bring back into beneficial use a
site that has been unused for several years.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

Page 24




Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

In line with the Company Business Plan MLH needs to increase the size of its portfolio
and sell private units to improve its long-term viability. This will in turn increase financial
returns to the Council as sole shareholder. The proposal presents a good opportunity
for MLH to acquire a site close to the Station, in an area where similar developments
have flourished.

The acquisition and proposed housing development also aligns with the Councils
regeneration objectives, and will contribute to making Havering a great place to live,
work and enjoy. The site has been derelict for many years and has attracted significant
anti-social behaviour. The proposed development will bring the site back into beneficial
use.

Given this, the option of not proceeding with the proposed MLH scheme was rejected.

PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

None

NAME AND JOB TITLE OF STAFF MEMBER ADVISING THE DECISION-MAKER

Name: Mark Butler

Designation: Assistant Director — Regeneration & Place Shaping

Signature: Date: 315t August 2023.

Page 25



Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

Part B - Assessment of implications and risks

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Finance Arrangements

In relation to entering into the financial arrangements the Council may rely on Section 1
of the Localism Act 2011 which provides local authorities with the power to do anything
that an individual may do subject to a number of limitations (this is referred to as the
General Power). Together with Section 111 Local Government Act 1972, which
provides the Council with the power to do anything whether or not involving the
expenditure, borrowing or lending of money or the acquisition of property rights which
is incidental, conducive or calculated to facilitate the exercise of any of their functions.
The Council could rely on these powers to provide the company with loans.

Public Subsidy Control

It is important that any loans provided to MLH are UK subsidy control compliant under
section 2 Subsidy Control Act 2022. Loans which the Council generally makes available to
MLH for market housing must be made on commercial terms and at a commercial
interest rate or where the Council is acting like any usual market investor. It may be
necessary for the Council to obtain independent confirmation that such arrangements
have been made on commercial terms prior to them being entered into including taking
usual securities over land/assets under usual market conditions.

Fiduciary Duties

The Council’s fiduciary duties could be briefly summarised as it acting as a trustee of
tax and public sector income on behalf of its rate and tax payers. The Council in effect
holds money but does not own it; it spends money on behalf of its business rate and
Council-tax payers.

In making decisions concerning MLH, the Council considers whether making investment
and/or extending loans to that body (and similar activities) should give proper
consideration to the risks and rewards of approving the recommendations. In practice
Members will want to consider whether the Council will achieve an appropriate return
for its risk and that the Council has minimised the risk and potential cost to it if the
Company were to become insolvent and/or defaulted on its loan(s).

Consideration should also be given to whether the Council’s involvement in this
arrangement is proportionate and properly balanced against the anticipated benefit as
well as the wider interest of its local business rate and council tax payers. On a practical
basis this means that Members should consider whether the monies that they are
requested to approve for lending could be better used by the Council for the wider
interests of its local tax payers. This should include considering the impact on the
Council (and therefore its local tax payers) if the Company became insolvent or
otherwise defaulted on loans it had taken from the Council.

Page 26



Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

A number of risks have been considered in the evaluation of the business case relating
to the proposed funding of the development proposals at Peel Way. These include
looking at the PWLB borrowing rates and on-lending; assessment of development risk;
public subsidy control and transfer pricing. These risks can be appropriately managed
across the scheme.

Exempt Appendix A comprises the MLH Business Case for Peel Way. Exempt Appendix
B provides the Council’'s Commercial Review of the MLH development proposals.

In summary, this information demonstrates that it would be appropriate for the Council
to provide the loan support requested by MLH provided that it is regulated by Loan
Facility Agreements between the Council and MLH. The funding requested by MLH, as
set out in the exempt appendices, should not therefore be advanced unless and until
such an agreement(s) has been legally completed.

The decision will, amongst other things, require the utilisation of Council Officers to
assist in the development of the Loan Facility Agreement(s), the release of funds to
Mercury Land Holding and the associated on-going financial monitoring.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS
(AND ACCOMMODATION IMPLICATIONS WHERE RELEVANT)

There are no direct implications arising from the proposed provision of funding to MLH.

Page 27



Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

EQUALITIES AND SOCIAL INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

(i) The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(i) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
protected characteristics and those who do not, and;

(i) Foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and
those who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation,
marriage and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and gender
reassignment.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the
Council is also committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all Havering
residents in respect of socioeconomics and health determinants.

In relation to the proposed provision of funding to MLH there would appear to be no
risks or implications associated with the Council’s statutory duty.

Beyond the narrow decision itself, the new homes to be to be acquired will all conform
to the appropriate Building Regulations, including those for access, and with planning
requirements.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS
There are no direct implications arising from the proposed provision of funding to MLH.

Indirectly, the proposed provision of funding will have a positive impact by enabling
new housing to be produced which will help to address the overall need for new housing
in Havering as set out in the Council’s Adopted Local Plan.

All new housing will be built having regard to extant planning policy and building control
standards. Amongst other things, flood prevention and mitigation measures have been
considered, as appropriate, through the planning application process. The new homes
will be warm, well-ventilated and conform to appropriate space standards, all of which
will help to support individual health and well-being.

The provision of new homes generally can help to support the local economy by
providing homes near to employment areas as well as supporting the economy through
the operation of the construction sector and associated supply chain.

Page 28



Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Exempt Appendix A
Exempt Appendix B
Exempt Appendix C
Public Appendix D
Exempt Appendix E
Exempt Appendix F

APPENDICIES

Business Case - Financial Implications & Risks
Council Commercial Review

Heads of Terms

Site Location Plan

Draft Design & Access Statement

External Valuation Report

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct implications arising from the proposed provision of funding to MLH.

The proposed new housing will be built having regard to extant planning policy and
building control standards. Amongst other things, flood prevention and mitigation
measures will be considered, as appropriate, through the planning application process.
The new homes will be warm, well-ventilated and energy efficient.

Page 29




Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

Part C — Record of decision

| have made this executive decision in accordance with authority delegated to
me by the Leader of the Council and in compliance with the requirements of the
Constitution.

Decision

Proposal agreed
Delete as applicable

Details of decision maker

Signed
Signed )z{
- \

Name GEAIAM Wil som)

Name:

Cabinet Portfolio held: Development & Regeneration
CMT Member title:

Head of Service title

Other manager title:

Date: 26" October 2023

Lodging this notice

The signed decision notice must be delivered to the proper officer, Debra
Marlow, Principal Democratic Services Officer in Democratic Services, in the
Town Hall.

For use by Committee Administration

This notice was lodged with me on

Page 30



Key Executive Decision — Part Exempt Report

Signed

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



NATIONAL LEASE PLANS
Suite D2 Northside House, Mount Pleasant
Cockfosters, EN4 9EB
T: 0845 124 9552

www.nationalleaseplans.co.uk Pag

ADDRESS:
ST BERNARDS DAY
CENTRE, PEEL WAY

HAROLD WOOD
& /0P

DETAILS:
SITE PLAN

%
SCALE: | DATE:
1:500 | JAN 2022
DRAWING NO:

01,01




This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 CALL-IN OF AN EXECUTIVE DECISION - PROPOSED LOANS TO MERCURY LAND HOLDINGS LIMITED (COMPANY NO: 09878652), FOR DEVELOPMENT AT FORMER ST BERNARD'S DAY CENTRE, PEEL WAY.
	Requisition Grounds
	23.11.15 O&S Proposed Loan to MLH - Peel Way
	Appendix G (exempt)
	51. Executive Decision Peel Way Public Report 310823 V24 F
	51. Appendix A (EXEMPT) - MLH Business Case Peel Way v22
	51. Appendix B (EXEMPT) - MLH Peel Way Com Rev KED
	51. Appendix C (EXEMPT) - MLH Peel Way Heads of Terms 12.06.2023
	51. Appendix D (PUBLIC) - MLH Peel Way  Site Location Plan
	51. APPENDIX E (EXEMPT) - MLH Peel Way Draft Design & Access Statement
	51. APPENDIX F (EXEMPT) - MLH Peel Way St Bernards Day Centre Val Report 12.06.23


